LAKESIDE AVENUE

Burlington




SOUTH END GF BURLINGTON:

(AdaméfStreet,‘Alfred Street, Caroline Street, Catherine Street, Charlotte
Street, Ferguson Avenue, Flynn Avenue, Foster Avenue, Hayward Street,
Hoover ‘Street, Lakeside Avenue, Overlake Park, Perrotta Place, Scarff
Avenue )

As real estate speculators such as Charles W. Scarff and A.0. Ferguson spurred the
development of factories near Lake Champlain in the south end of Burlington, the need
for housing grew proportionately. About six dwelling houses existed in the area,
until Henry Conger began selling Lakeside lots at $250-500 for double housing units.
in 1894. At this time, the trolleys tramsported goods and people from downtown
Burlington along Pine Street.

Though the industries took no interest in developing workers' housing, men such
as S.P. Saxe and the Reverand Edward Hungerford responded to the need and built many
tenement blocks in the area. ‘

One hundred acres purchased by Scarff and Ferguson from the Foster Farm, north—
east of the lakeside factory development, was divided into eighteen city blocks
(south on Home Avenue, north on Flynn . Avenue, east on Shelburne Road, west along
the railroad tracks by the lake). The streets were named for the influential
entrepreneurs in the city of Burlington (Richardson, Wells, Lyman, Flynn, etec.).
Bungaloid, Colonial Revival and Dutch Colonial Revival homes sprang up, reflecting
the popular building trends of this period.

The factories continued successfully into the twentieth-century but it was the
1920's war prosperity that brought improvement and growth to the neighborhoods.

The Queen City Cotton Company established a baseball park, nursery, first aid station
with a visiting nurse, sidewalks and shade trees. '"There is a big community spirit
at Lakeside now," said the Burlington Free Press (Feb 19, Aug 20, 1920).

Northeast of the Lakeside development, other streets, named after the developer's
daughters (Caroline, Catherine, Charlotte, Margaret, Marian), or for the trees that
lined curbs, {(Locust) exhibited popular housing styles.

Neighborhood decline began by 1925, but was not apparent until 1935-37, when
workers striked against the cotton mills; business dropped and land went up for
sale, with tenants and employees having first options. The plants changed hands with
General Electric taking over the old Queen City Cotton Company buildings in 1947.

Since the building boom in the 1920'sand 1930's, the original Lakeside neighbor-
hoods have remained basically unchanged.

While the farmlands were being developed west of Shelburne Road, to the east lay
the Hickok, Buell and Cannon Estates. Individual contractors such as Alfred Perrotta
began building on parcels of these lands, that were gradually sold for development
(#8, 12, 22 Perrotta Place). The Willard Ledge Quarry, south of Ledge Road, which
had been operating since 1805, ceased production in 1919 and eventually became
Adams Court, Ludwig Couirt and Hoover Street, where the redstone walls abutt the
backyards.

Street pattern growth has continued along both sides of Shelburne Road during
the 1940's - 1960's, as the southern part of Burlington has expanded to today's
suburban fringe.
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o PRESENT FORMAL NAME:
ICOUNTY s Chittenden CORIGINAL FORMAL NAMPE:
TOWN ¢ Burlington
LOCATION: 57-59 Lakeside Avenue. Two 'DRES ENT USE: Duplex

lots east from corner of Central Avenue.

COMMON NAME:

FUNCTIONAL TYPE: Duplex.

ORLIGINAL USEHE:

ARCHITECT /ENGINEER :
Unknown -

BUTLDER/CONTRACTOR:
Kieslich Comstruction Company

OWNER: T.ucienne & Gabrielle Landry
ADDRESS: 57-59 Lakeside Avenue

PHVSICAM CONDITION OF STRUCTUREv
Bxcellent [ Goodﬁ

Numb@v of Stmrlevz
Number of Bavs:

4%6

Gable fromt

__Burlington F—lziﬁ POOfLJ
ACCESSIBILITY TO PUBLIC: :
Yes Lj , O@ _ycSLKl\,tedd STYLE Vernacular
LEVEL OF SleIFTCAWCE’ _DAWE BUILT:
Localbl state B National 1917 ‘
GENERAL DEBCRIPTION: ~
Structural System :
1. Foundation: stone@ Brick[] Concretel] Concrete Block[}
2. Wall SBtructure ‘
a. Wood Frame: DPost & Be am”} Ralloon B
L. ad Bearing Masonry: Brick{] utone[] Concretel |
COﬁFTP?e Blockil
c. Irvonlli d. Steeil] . Other:

3. Wall Co«ez%nd: Clapboa%d{] Board & Batten (] Wood Sn;ngie{j
Shiplapil Novelty[l Asbestos Shingie[] Sheet Metall]
Aluminum B  AEsphalt Shingiel] Brick Veneer{ | Stone Veneer| |
Bondin ¢ Other:

4. Roof 8¢

a. Tru 1 &Bteell] Qopc:@teL
b, Oth i

‘5. ERoof Covering: - 1ate B Wood Shingleb] “Asphalt Shingle[ﬁ
Sheet Meta1£] Built Upll Rolled{] Tile!] Other:

6. Engineeying Structure: ‘

7. Other: o

Appendages: Porches@ Towers{] Cupolas|] Chimneys
Shedsi | Ells! Wings{ } Bay Window| ] Othe
Roof Style: aGa» Hipll s Flati ] Mansardil Gambrel'j
rklnheode othl 1 W With Bellcastl ]

Intrance Location:

Approximate Dimensions: 9gya0 “center.
THREAT TO STRUCTURE: . - :’ LOCAL ATTITUDES:
No Threat{] Zoningl] Roads(] i DOSLth@Lj Negativel ]
; J
Development{! Deter loraLJonL3 : ixed ] Other:
Al efaClOﬁ'J Other: é




ADDITIONAL ARCHITECTURAL
2%

OR: STRUCTURAL DESCRIPTION:

story gable front rectangular plan duplex with 2-bay gable voof porch
with boxed corpice of turned posts and post balustrade.

Symmetrically fene~
strated facade with 6/2 and 2/2 sash windows with plain surrounds. Fast-west.
gable wall dormers with drip molds. Rear two~story porch with exposed rafter
ends. Front and center interior chimneys with corbeled caps.

RELATED STRUCTURES: (Describe)

l-story, two bay. hip roof garage with boxed cornice, double hlnge doors
with diagonal bracing on lower panels on a concrete foundation,
attached.

Rear shed
‘(c 1920-307s). (18'x1l4%). : :

ATTMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE:

This well preserved house, and a series of similar duplex houses in the
area, was built by the Kieslich Construction Company for the employees of
the factories and mills located near Lake Champlain.

dr The model home for
these duplexes was built on Lakeview Terrace in the north end of
Burlington.

. REFERENCES

-

Burlington Dlrectory, 1817.

Interview with Richard Kieslich, Dec, 1982,
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SURROUNDING ENVIRONMENT:
Open Landl] Woodlandl[]
‘ %? : ' . Scattered Buildings[]
\\ﬁ// : Moderately Built Up{}
% R Jensely Built Up@
% e Ty Residentialf Commerciall]
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